
From: Marcia McNutt <mmcnutt@aaas.org>  
Sent: Friday, January 29, 2016 3:21 PM 
To: James E. Enstrom <jenstrom@ucla.edu> 
Subject: Re: Important Request re Science & NAS & Scientific Dissent 
 
Dr. Enstrom: 
 
There are literally thousands of academic journals available for you to publish you work. Science only 
publishes the highest quality 6%. Please do not take it personally that your work did not get published in 
Science. Most submissions do not. There are many other journals that will review your research. If every 
researcher whose work was rejected without review accused me of suppression of scientific dissent, the 
entire world would be joining you. I assure you that they understand what a rejection from Science 
means. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Marcia McNutt 
 
AAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAAS 
Dr. Marcia K. McNutt 
Editor-in-Chief, Science journals 
American Association for the Advancement of Science 
1200 New York Avenue N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20005 
(202) 326-6505 (w) 
(831) 915-4699 (c) 
mmcnutt@aaas.org 
AAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAASAAAS 
 

From: "James E. Enstrom" <jenstrom@ucla.edu> 

Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 at 6:09 PM 

To: Marcia McNutt <mmcnutt@aaas.org> 

Cc: "'Susan R. Wessler'" <susan.wessler@ucr.edu>, "'Barbara A. Schaal'" <schaal@wustl.edu>, 'Peter 

Wood' <pwood@nas.org> 

Subject: Important Request re Science & NAS & Scientific Dissent 

 

January 29, 2016 

  

Marcia K. McNutt, Ph.D. 
Editor-in-Chief, Science 

President-Elect, National Academy of Sciences 

mmcnutt@aaas.org 

  

Dear Editor-in-Chief McNutt, 

mailto:mmcnutt@aaas.org
mailto:jenstrom@ucla.edu
mailto:mmcnutt@aaas.org
mailto:susan.wessler@ucr.edu
mailto:schaal@wustl.edu
mailto:pwood@nas.org
mailto:mmcnutt@aaas.org


  

Regarding your recent communications with ‘Bruin GOP’, I want to assure you that “Wood and 

Enstrom” are not “detractors” who make “baseless accusations” regarding your “candidacy for 

the NAS presidency.”  We are both very accomplished academics and we have uncovered very 

strong evidence that Science has suppressed scientific dissent on three important issues (LNT, 

PM2.5, and AGW).  Also, we have found that there is an incestuous relationship between the 

Science Editor-in-Chief, the AAAS President, and the NAS Home Secretary that is unhealthy for 

science in America. 
  

In order to properly understand my above statements, please carefully read everything in the 

attached PDF:  this email letter, my January 22, 2016 and December 22, 2015 email letters to 

NAS Home Secretary Susan R. Wessler, my January 15, 2016 email letter to AAAS President-

Elect Barbara A. Schaal, the December 9, 2015 National Association of Scholars letter by Dr. 

Peter Wood, my June 4, 2015 email letter to you, and the June 6-7, 2015 Wall Street Journal 

editorial “Scientific Fraud and Politics.”   

  
All of this started on June 4, 2015, when I emailed you 72 pages of evidence of scientific 

misconduct in PM2.5 epidemiology and you refused to examine my evidence in any way.  Since 

then the evidence challenging the validity of LNT, PM2.5, and AGW has gotten stronger and 

Science has not published any of this evidence.  The latest development regarding AGW is 

described in the January 28, 2016 Daily Caller article “300 Scientists Want NOAA To Stop 

Hiding Its Global Warming Data” (http://dailycaller.com/2016/01/28/300-scientists-want-noaa-

to-stop-hiding-its-global-warming-data/). 
  
If you want to demonstrate that Science does not suppress dissent on important scientific issues, 

please reconsider your 2015 rejections regarding LNT, PM2.5, and AGW.  You can start by 

internally and/or externally peer reviewing the evidence on these issues that you have received.  

In the meantime, I will continue explaining the problems that exist at Science, AAAS, and NAS 

to groups like ‘Bruin GOP’.  Indeed, I am relating the current situation to the ultimate example 

of the suppression of scientific dissent, which is very well explained in the July 16, 1965 Science 

article “The Rise and Fall of Lysenko” (http://science.sciencemag.org/content/149/3681/275). 

Thank you very much for your consideration of this important matter. 

  

Sincerely yours, 

  

James E. Enstrom, Ph.D., M.P.H. 

UCLA and Scientific Integrity Institute 

jenstrom@ucla.edu 

(310) 472-4274 
  

cc:        Susan R. Wessler, Ph.D. <susan.wessler@ucr.edu> 
            Barbara A. Schaal, Ph.D. <schaal@wustl.edu>     
            Peter Wood, Ph.D. <pwood@nas.org>  
            Bruin GOP 

http://dailycaller.com/2016/01/28/300-scientists-want-noaa-to-stop-hiding-its-global-warming-data/
http://dailycaller.com/2016/01/28/300-scientists-want-noaa-to-stop-hiding-its-global-warming-data/
http://science.sciencemag.org/content/149/3681/275
mailto:jenstrom@ucla.edu
mailto:susan.wessler@ucr.edu
mailto:schaal@wustl.edu
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January 22, 2016 

 

Susan R. Wessler, Ph.D. 

Home Secretary 
National Academy of Sciences 
Distinguished Professor of Genetics 

Department of Botany and Plant Sciences 

University of California, Riverside 

susan.wessler@ucr.edu 
 

Dear Professor Wessler, 
 

I am writing to you and Professor Barbara A. Schaal as a follow-up to my December 22, 2015 

letter to you (http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/Wessler122215.pdf), my January 5, 2016 

telephone conversation with you, and my January 15, 2016 letter to Dr. Schaal 

(http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/Schaal011516.pdf).  I understand that the NAS 

election to confirm Dr. Marcia K. McNutt as the next NAS President ends on January 25, 2016.  

Since you are conducting this election, I request that you publicly reveal:  1) the names of all 

members of the NAS Presidential Nominating Committee and 2) the total number of votes for 

and against Dr. McNutt and the number of votes by state. 

Also, I request that you and incoming AAAS President Schaal issue a statement opposing the 

suppression of dissent on controversial scientific issues, such as the three described in the 

December 9, 2015 National Association of Scholars letter “Concerns about the National 

Academy of Sciences and Scientific Dissent” (https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter).  Your 

statement should encourage peer review and publication in Science of valid evidence contesting 

the ‘consensus’ view on major scientific issues, such as, LNT, PM2.5, and AGW.   

You stated to me over the phone that you are not familiar with any of these controversial issues 

and that you do not want to learn about them, particularly the ways in which they adversely 

impact the greater Riverside area.  However, you signed the May 7, 2010 Science Letter to the 

Editor about the AGW issue “Climate Change and the Integrity of Science,” which was 

organized by environmental activist Dr. Peter H. Gleick and signed by 255 NAS members 

(http://science.sciencemag.org/content/328/5979/689).  The Letter contains highly contested 

claims like “There is compelling, comprehensive, and consistent objective evidence that humans 

are changing the climate in ways that threaten our societies and the ecosystems on which we 

depend.”  There is an immediate need for Science to publish evidence disputing these claims. 

 

Renowned AGW skeptic and NAS member Richard S. Lindzen wrote an important 2012 Euresis 

Journal article, “Climate science: is it designed to answer questions?” 

(http://arxiv.org/ftp/arxiv/papers/0809/0809.3762.pdf), which describes activism within NAS.  

He stated that given the enthusiasm for climate science that began in the late 1980s, the NAS 

created a loophole for electing new members.  Specifically, “The vetting procedure is generally 

rigorous, but for over 20 years, there was a Temporary Nominating Group for the Global 

Environment to provide a back door for the election of candidates who were environmental 

activists, bypassing the conventional vetting procedure.  Members, so elected, proceeded to join 

mailto:susan.wessler@ucr.edu
http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/Wessler122215.pdf
http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/Schaal011516.pdf
https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter
http://science.sciencemag.org/content/328/5979/689
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existing sections where they hold a veto power over the election of any scientists unsympathetic 

to their position.  Moreover, they are almost immediately appointed to positions on the executive 

council, and other influential bodies within the Academy.  One of the members elected via the 

Temporary Nominating Group, Ralph Cicerone, is now president of the National Academy.  

Prior to that, he was on the nominating committee for the presidency.  It should be added that 

there is generally only a single candidate for president.”  Others elected to the NAS via this route 

include AGW activists James E. Hansen, John P. Holdren, and Peter H. Gleick.  As strong 

evidence of his NAS activism, Dr. Gleick has faced criminal referral since April 2, 2012 because 

of his illegal conduct against the Heartland Institute, an organization that is skeptical of AGW 

(https://www.heartland.org/sites/default/files/criminal_referral_of_peter_gleick.pdf).  

 

New concerns about Dr. McNutt are contained in the January 20, 2016 Huffington Post column 

by NAS member Corey S. Goodman about two controversies “The President's Unfinished 

Promise: The Federal Government Still Lacks a Meaningful Scientific Integrity Policy”  

(http://www.huffingtonpost.com/corey-s-goodman/scientific-integrity-policy_b_9024578.html).  

Regarding the ‘oyster war’ at Drakes Estero controversy, Dr. Goodman states “In December 

2012, I alerted then-USGS Director Dr. Marcia McNutt (currently Editor of Science Magazine 

and soon-to-be President of the National Academy of Sciences) to the misrepresentation of 

Stewart's report since it involved USGS officials. She agreed the misrepresentation was serious, 

and said she would instruct her Scientific Integrity Officer to open an investigation. After many 

months, and with no response to repeated emails to McNutt or her Scientific Integrity Officer, I 

filed a formal scientific misconduct complaint in May 2013 with the Secretary of the Interior. . . . 

It took Interior over eight months to interview the key witness, Dr. Stewart, as to whether his 

scientific report and conclusions had been altered by USGS and NPS officials (Stewart was 

never asked the key question). In November 2014, five months after the Department of the 

Interior won the court battle, the USGS Scientific Integrity Officer, Alan Thornhill, sent me a 

two-sentence dismissal to my 164-page misconduct complaint. He wrote: "... we did not find 

misconduct or a loss of scientific integrity and the case is dismissed."”   

 

You and Dr. Schaal must address the serious issues raised about Dr. McNutt, Science, AAAS, 

and NAS in this letter and in prior communications, particularly regarding the NAS election of 

Dr. McNutt and the suppression of scientific dissent on three issues (LNT, PM2.5, and AGW).  

If you do not address these issues, I will present my growing evidence of liberal bias and liberal 

activism by Dr. McNutt, Science, AAAS, and NAS in key forums during the next nine months.  

Thank you very much for your consideration regarding this important request. 

  

Sincerely yours, 

  

James E. Enstrom, Ph.D., M.P.H. 

UCLA and Scientific Integrity Institute 

jenstrom@ucla.edu 

(310) 472-4274 

 

cc:     Barbara A. Schaal <schaal@wustl.edu> 

          Peter Wood <pwood@nas.org> 

https://www.heartland.org/sites/default/files/criminal_referral_of_peter_gleick.pdf
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/corey-s-goodman/scientific-integrity-policy_b_9024578.html
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From: "James E. Enstrom" <jenstrom@ucla.edu> 

To: "'Susan R. Wessler'" <susan.wessler@ucr.edu> 

Subject: Important Request Regarding NAS and Scientific Dissent 

Date: Tue, 22 Dec 2015 09:47:30 -0800 

 

 

December 22, 2015 
  
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

  
I helped Dr. Peter Wood prepare his December 9, 2015 National Association of Scholars email 

letter to California members of the National Academy of Sciences (NAS) “Concerns about the 

National Academy of Sciences and Scientific Dissent” (https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter), 

which you have received.  I am writing to you about this email letter because you are both the 

Home Secretary of the National Academy of Sciences and a UC Riverside Distinguished 

Professor (http://newsroom.ucr.edu/2547).  

First, in your role as NAS Home Secretary, I request that you send the email letter to all NAS 

members, since it deals with serious concerns about suppression of scientific dissent and Dr. 

Marcia K. McNutt as the next NAS President.  Please let me know if you cannot send this email 

letter to NAS members. 

Second, in your role as UC Riverside Distinguished Professor, I request that you become at least 

somewhat familiar with the three scientific controversies described in the email letter because all 

three have direct relevance to current environmental regulations in California.  These regulations 

originate from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), California Air Resources 

Board (CARB), and South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD).  Based on the 

detailed evidence described in the email letter, I can make a strong case that these regulations are 

scientifically unjustified and are hurting California businesses and the California economy. 

Additional evidence against these regulations is contained in my July 13, 2015 letter to the 

Moreno Valley City Council about the World Logistics Center (WLC) Final Environmental 

Impact Report (http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/WLCFEIR071315.pdf).  The WLC is 

located about ten miles from UC Riverside and could create new 20,000 blue collar jobs in the 

greater Riverside area.  However, the WLC is being opposed by CARB and SCAQMD for 

scientifically unjustified reasons.    

mailto:susan.wessler@ucr.edu
https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter
http://newsroom.ucr.edu/2547
http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/WLCFEIR071315.pdf


Finally, please read my unanswered August 31, 2015 letter to UC Riverside Professor and UC 

Academic Senate Chair J. Daniel Hare regarding the illegal appointments of several UC 

Professors on the Scientific Review Panel on Toxic Air Contaminants (SRP) 

(http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/UCASSRP083115.pdf).  The SRP has played an 

important role in scientifically unjustified regulations by CARB and SCAQMD. 

Thank you very much for your consideration regarding this important request. 

  

Sincerely yours, 

  

James E. Enstrom, Ph.D., M.P.H. 

UCLA and Scientific Integrity Institute 

jenstrom@ucla.edu 

(310) 472-4274 

 

  

 

http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/UCASSRP083115.pdf
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January 15, 2016 

 

Barbara A. Schaal, Ph.D. 

Chair, Presidential Nominating Committee 

National Academy of Sciences 

President Elect 

American Association for the Advancement of Science 

Dean of the Faculty of Arts and Sciences and 

Mary-Dell Chilton Distinguished Professor of Biology 

Washington University, St. Louis 

schaal@wustl.edu 

schaal@biology.wustl.edu 

 

Dear Professor Schaal, 

I am writing again to request that you respond to my January 7, 2015 email letter regarding the 

National Association of Scholars email letter by Dr. Peter Wood to you and numerous other 

members of the National Academy of Sciences (NAS) “Concerns about the National Academy 

of Sciences and Scientific Dissent” (https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter).  Based a January 

11, 2016 message from NAS Home Secretary Susan R. Wessler, NAS voting for Dr. Marcia K. 

McNutt will continue until January 25, 2015, after which time I assume the election of Dr. 

McNutt as the next NAS President will be officially confirmed. 

I am disturbed about several aspects of this election:  1) Dr. McNutt is the only candidate for 

NAS President; 2) you and Dr. Wessler have not expressed any concern that the National 

Association of Scholars email letter will not be seen by all NAS members; and 3) you have not 

revealed to me the names of the other NAS Presidential Nominating Committee members.   

Also, I am disturbed that you are have expressed no concern about my December 22, 2015 letter 

to UC Riverside Professor Wessler (http://scientificintegrityinstitute.org/wessler122215.pdf).  

This letter makes clear that Science Editor-in-Chief McNutt has been directly involved with 

suppressing dissent on three important scientific issues (linear no threshold dose response, fine 

particulate matter epidemiology, and anthropogenic global warming).  All three issues are having 

an adverse socioeconomic impact on the greater Riverside area, indeed on all of California, 

because of draconian California air pollution regulations that are based upon “consensus” views 

on these scientific issues. 

Thus, in addition to you, I am reaching out to the February 11-15, 2016 AAAS Annual Meeting 

Program Co-Chair France A. Córdova, a former UC Riverside Chancellor, and to current NAS 

President Ralph J. Cicerone, a former UC Irvine Chancellor.  Both of these distinguished 

scientists are familiar with the three scientific issues and their impact on California because of 

they have had important careers in California.  I hope that all three of you will encourage 

discussion of the National Association of Scholars letter at the AAAS Meeting. 

mailto:schaal@wustl.edu
mailto:schaal@biology.wustl.edu
https://www.nas.org/articles/nas_letter
http://scientificintegrityinstitute.org/wessler122215.pdf


2 

 

One opportunity is the February 12, 2016 session on “Peer Review for Public Trust.”  The 

organizers of this session, Science Editor Brad Wible and Dr. McNutt, are the very scientists who 

refused to peer review massive and meticulously documented evidence of scientific misconduct 

in fine particulate matter epidemiology, which was submitted to them on July 20, 2015 by nine 

distinguished academics.  Panelist and former Deputy Editor of NEJM and JAMA Drummond 

Rennie should be particularly concerned about refusal to peer review massive evidence of 

scientific misconduct. 

A second opportunity is the February 14, 2016 session on “Fostering Integrity in Science: An 

Action Agenda.”  Panelist and Georgia Tech Professor Robert M. Nerem will be discussing the 

new National Academies of Sciences, Engineering and Medicine report Integrity of Science, 

which “examines the most significant challenges facing the research enterprise in fostering 

integrity and develops an action agenda for researchers and other stakeholders.”  Evidence of 

suppression of scientific dissent should be of great interest to this panel. 

A third opportunity is the February 14, 2016 session on “Integrating Science into Policy: What 

Works and Why.”  Panelist and Arizona State Professor Daniel Sarewitz will be discussing the 

very divisive issue of climate change, particularly a dispute over attribution of climate impacts 

between President Obama's science advisor John Holdren and University of Colorado climate 

scientist Roger Pielke, Jr.  The suppression of climate change dissent by Dr. McNutt, as 

described in the National Association of Scholars letter, is highly relevant to this dispute.  

I hope that those of you who receive this message take it seriously, because it involves the 

scientific integrity of Science, AAAS, and NAS.  As stated in the summary of one of the above 

sessions “Erosion of public trust in science due to such issues [transparency, reproducibility, and 

falsification] has the potential to be devastating.”  If the leadership of Science, AAAS, and NAS 

does not address scientific integrity and suppression of scientific dissent, these issues will be 

addressed in other forums, particularly during this year.   

Thank you very much for your consideration. 

Sincerely yours, 

James E. Enstrom, Ph.D., M.P.H. 

UCLA and Scientific Integrity Institute 

jenstrom@ucla.edu 

(310) 472-4274 

 

cc: Susan R. Wessler <susan.wessler@ucr.edu> 

Geraldine L. Richmond <richmond@uoregon.edu> 

France A. Córdova <fcordova@nsf.gov>  

Ralph J. Ciceroni <rcicerone@nas.edu>   

Drummond Rennie <drummond.rennie@ucsf.edu> 

Robert M. Nerem <robert.nerem@me.gatech.edu> 

Daniel Sarewitz <Daniel.Sarewitz@asu.edu>  

Peter Wood <pwood@nas.org> 
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Date: Thu, 04 Jun 2015 14:19:42 -0700 

To: Marcia K. McNutt <mmcnutt@aaas.org> 

From: "James E. Enstrom" <jenstrom@ucla.edu> 

Subject: Important Request re AAAS & 'Secret Science Reform' 

Cc: Geraldine L. Richmond <richmond@uoregon.edu>, Carlos J. Bustamante <carlosb@berkeley.edu>, 

       Michael Gazzaniga <michael.gazzaniga@psych.ucsb.edu>, Elizabeth F. Loftus <eloftus@uci.edu>,  

       Chris Carter <chris.carter@ucdc.edu> 

 

June 4, 2015 

  

Marcia K. McNutt, Ph.D. 

Editor-in-Chief, Science 

mmcnutt@aaas.org 

  

Dear Editor-in-Chief McNutt, 

  

On May 28, 2015, Science retracted the December 12, 2014 paper by Michael LaCour and Donald Green because, in part, 

the underlying data is not available to independently confirm the paper’s findings.  Science requires Data and Materials 

Availability for the papers that it publishes.  Science has written extensively between July 25, 1997 and August 9, 2013 

about the use of the relationship between fine particulate air pollution (PM2.5) and mortality to justify costly EPA 

regulations and the lack of access to the data underlying this relationship. 

  

Because this ‘secret science’ data has never been available for independent analysis, Congress has introduced the Secret 

Science Reform Act to “prohibit the Environmental Protection Agency from proposing, finalizing, and disseminating 

regulations or assessments that are based upon science that is not transparent or reproducible.”  However, AAAS has 

written at least three letters to Congress raising objections to an act which requires access to underlying data.  I request 

that AAAS reconsider its objections to this act and take a clear position in favor of access to the data underlying the 

PM2.5-mortality relationship.  During the past ten years I have assembled extensive evidence that scientific misconduct 

has occurred in PM2.5 epidemiology and on December 1, 2014, I submitted 65 pages of such evidence to EPA 

(http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/JEECPP120114.pdf).  On February 17, 2015, I submitted 72 pages of similar 

evidence to the UCLA Vice Chancellor for Research (http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/Economou021715.pdf).  

My evidence is far more extensive than the 27 pages of evidence that supported the retraction of the LaCour and Green 

paper.        

  

I request that you and the AAAS Board of Directors examine my evidence, much of which involves UCLA Professor 

Michael Jerrett, who is at the same university as LaCour.  The stakes are high for both scientific integrity and the U.S. 

economy.  The PM2.5-mortality relationship is currently being used as a major justification for many major EPA 

regulations, most recently EPA’s Clean Power Plan.  The CPP has been estimated to cost up to $479 billion over the next 

15 years and a strong case can be made that it is not scientifically or economically justified.  I will be giving a talk about 

“EPA’s Clean Power Plan and PM2.5-related Co-benefits” on June 11, 2015 at the Tenth International Conference on 

Climate Change in Washington, DC.  You and others from Science and AAAS are welcome to attend my presentation. 

  

Last Friday I sent the email message below to most of the scientists involved with PM2.5 epidemiology misconduct and 

no one has yet responded.  I hope that Science and AAAS will take my evidence of misconduct seriously.  In any case, I 

am going to use this evidence to support the April 11, 2014 Lancet Comment of Editor Richard Horton, who stated, in 

part, “The case against science is straightforward: much of the scientific literature, perhaps half, may simply be untrue . . . 

. science has taken a turn towards darkness.”  

  

Thank you very much for your consideration of this important matter. 

  

Sincerely yours, 

  

James E. Enstrom, Ph.D., M.P.H. 

UCLA and Scientific Integrity Institute 

http://www.scientificintegrityinstitute.org/ 

jenstrom@ucla.edu   (310) 472-4274 
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